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The Paris Cemetery Gatehouse is located on the west side of U.S. Highway 68 on 
the southern fringe of Paris, the seat of Bourbon County. Several late-19th-century 
and early-20th-century dwellings remain in the neighborhood of the gatehouse, but 
commercial establishments are rapidly encroaching upon the area.

The structure was built ca. 1847, and was designed by John McMurtry of 
Lexington. Essentially, this brick construction is composed of a three-bay Tudor 
arcade connecting two 1%-story cubiform lodges. The southern block houses the 
superintendents office, and the other was meant to be a reception room, but is 
currently used for storage.

The central and larger arch, corbelled in an expert manner, was used as 
a passage for carriages, and is wide enough to accomodate automobiles; the smaller 
arches are used by pedestrians visiting the cemetery grounds. Supporting the 
arcade are four piers that rise above the battlemented parapet with beveled 
merlons. These piers are capped with cast-iron pinnacles of two designs. A 
rectangular marble plaque is set into the wall over each of the two smaller arches. 
One bears the inscription: "Paris Cemetery, Incorporated, January 30, 1837"; while 
the other reads: "It is appointed unto men once to die, but after this the 
judgement. Heb. IX, 27."

The main facades of the cubiform lodges are treated identically. Piercing 
the first level of each is a pair of rectangular windows, and in the upper level 
is a pair of square windows. Originally, Toidor label moldings were above, but 
these have been removed in recent years. Brick pilasters are at the corners, 
corbel tables are on all sides, and there is a continuous wooden boxed cornice 
below the parapets.

The lodges' sides are unfenestrated except for a small window near the 
street corner of each, and the rear is fenestrated in the same manner as the front. 
The entrances to these blocks are from the inner sides past the arches. Their 1 
interiors have been altered through the application of wood paneling on the walls, 
but a small mantel with an arched opening in the superintendent's office appears 
to be original.

The arches contain iron gates that are pristine in comparison with a fine, late 
Victorian iron fence that stretches for over 100 feet south of the gatehouse. This 
brick structure continues to serve its intended function, and is in a good state of 
preservation.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Paris Cemetery Gatehouse, built ca. 1847, is significant in being among 
the very few Gothic Revival structures, as opposed to buildings, in Kentucky. It 
exemplifies high qualities of design and workmanship, and is the product of 
Kentucky's leading proponent of the Gothic style, John McMurtry.

The Paris Cemetery Company was incorporated on January 30, 1847 shortly 
afterwards commissioning McMurtry to design an entrance gatehouse for the cemetery 
grounds. McMurtry (1812-1890), a native of Lexington, had no formal architectural 
education. However, in 1833 he apprenticed himself to Gideon Shryock who had 
studied for a year under William Striekland , (Clay Lancaster, Back Streets and 
Pine Trees, p. 2). It is Shryock who is credited for having introduced the Greek 
Revival to the West.

In the mid-1840s, a second architect with conventional training appeared in 
Lexington, Major Thomas Lewinski, a Polish emigre who had studied engineering in 
London. Many large commissions around Lexington went to Lewinski, and McMurtry 
"filled the humbler position of contractor on some of them" (Ibid., p. 23). 
Through his associations with this master, McMurtry fully profited learning much 
about the Gothic Revival which would become his forte.

Both Shryock and Lewinski moved elsewhere, leaving McMurtry as the person 
"whose work is most representative of the 19th-century architecture in central 
Kentucky" (Ibid., vii). His design for the Paris Cemetery Gatehouse remains 
both visually pleasing and very functional. McMurtry was careful to provide 
separate access for pedestrian and vehicular traffic, along with utilitarian 
areas necessary for the cemetery company's activities all parts being well integrated 
Although the structure is of no large dimensions, it possesses a conspicuous dignity 
and a quiet charm. In addition, the gatehouse's notable masonry workmanship renders 
it a sound construction that remains viable.

Apparently, McMurtry's product met with high approval, for several years later 
he was commissioned by the Lexington Cemetery to design a similar gatehouse. For 
the latter, he employed a same Tudor arcade, but substituted octagonal piers in two 
rows with no pinnacles (Patrick Snadon, Bargeboards and Bluegrass, p. 39). The 
Lexington gatehouse, however, was dismantled in 1890 and replaced with a more 
substantial structure in the Romanesque style.
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